ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 27, 2012
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Hollis French
Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO 171
"An Act increasing the base student allocation used for public
school funding; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 171

SHORT TITLE: | NCREASE BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON
SPONSOR('s): EDUCATI ON

01/ 20/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 12 (S) EDC, FIN
01/ 27/ 12 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D HERBERT, Presi dent

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators
St. Mary's, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171.

SI ERRA LLOYD, Student

Har bor vi ew El ement ary School

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171.

LI LLI AN WORL, representing herself

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2012



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171.

MAUREEN HALL, School Nurse

Juneau School District

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171.

DR. JOY NEYHART, Pediatrician

Rai nforest Pediatric Care

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171

STEWART MCDONALD, Superi nt endent

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School District
Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171

PETER HOEPFNER, Presi dent

Cordova School District Board of Education
Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171

ANNE KI LKENNY, representing herself
Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 171

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 24 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Co-Chair Meyer and Co-Chair
Thonmas

SB 171-1 NCREASE BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

8:04:44 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER announced the consideration of SB 171.

8:06: 18 AM

MJRRAY RI CHMOND, staff to Senator Thomas, co-aide for the Senate
Education Conmittee, SB 171 sponsor, said the bill gives

districts the ability to craft responsible and conservative
budgets with a three year plan of npbdest increases so districts
know how to plan. He said the bill changes the effective date
for the base student allocation (BSA) and raises the anmpbunts to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2012



$5805 on July 1, 2012, $5935 on July 1, 2013 and $6070 on July
1, 2014. He noted that annual BSA increases anount to $125 for
the first year, $130 for the second year and $135 for the third
year.

8:08: 09 AM

MR RICHVMOND said the Alaska Council of School Adm nistrators
(ACSA) FY13 Funding Review reported that districts would require
a $320 BSA increase to keep pace with expected cost increases,
excluding energy costs. He said many districts were facing
budget cuts and |ayoffs even with a BSA increase. Academ c Year
2012-13 (AY13) projections include Fairbanks with a $14.6

mllion shortfall, Anchorage wth a $6.2 mllion budget
reduction, Juneau with a $3.6 to $5.9 mllion budget cut and
Kodiak with a $1.2 million to $1.3 mllion reduction.

He noted that Haines was one of 12 districts which net Adequate
Yearly Progress (AYP) standards in 2011 with an 88 percent
graduation rate and 50 percent of its graduates qualifying for
the Al aska Performance Scholarship (APS). He said the Haines
School District voiced concerns that budget cuts could have a
negati ve inpact on positive gains made in academ c performance.

8:10: 46 AM

MR RICHMOND reviewed a report from the Economc Policy
Institute (EPI) titled "Were Has The Mney Been Going" to
address spending |levels and program conpositional change in
el enentary and secondary education from 1967 to 2005. He said
the report concluded that conventional views of the rise of
education spending were exaggerated because inflation in
educational services was nore rapid than inflation in the
econony overall due to a high percentage of Iabor cost in
education versus other industries. He said the real increase in
school spending has been on special education rather than on
regul ar academic prograns. He said federally nandated speci al
education spending increased from 3.7 percent in 1967 to 21.0
percent in 2005 and regular education spending decreased from
79.6 percent in 1967 to 55.0 percent in 2005.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if federal funding on special education
has i ncreased.

8:12: 32 AM
MR. RICHVOND answered that federal funding was decreasing for
speci al educati on.

8:13: 06 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2012



MR. RI CHMOND addressed an assunption that Al aska spends nore per
student than any other state in the US. He said a report from
the National Education Association (NEA) shows the state does
not lead the U S. in per student spending and spendi ng continues
to decrease, down from tenth in AYO4 to twenty second in AY10
He noted that Alaska was at one tine as high as third in the
U.S. for per student spending.

He reviewed 2011 academ c achi evenent assessnent of elenentary
and secondary students in Alaska from The Nation's Report Card
via the National Assessnent of Educational Progress (NAEP). He
said for average test results in reading, the state's fourth-
gr ade students ranked | ower t han t hose in 46
states/jurisdictions and ei ghth-grade students ranked |ower than
33 states/jurisdictions. He said in mathematics, the state's
fourth-grade  students ranked | ower than those in 33
states/jurisdictions and ei ghth-grade students ranked | ower than
those in 22 states/jurisdictions. He noted that achievenent
| evel percentages and average score results have steadily
i ncreased for eighth-grade students.

8:17: 38 AM
He said Alaska's dropout rate has steadily declined from
slightly above 6 percent in 2000 to below 5 percent in 2010.

8:18: 25 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked to verify NAEP test results that fourth-
grade reading scores declined while fourth-grade math, eighth-
grade readi ng and ei ght h-grade math i nproved.

MR RI CHVOND answered correct.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that the dropout rate reduction was
positive and noted that he was under the inpression that the
dropout rate was 40 percent. He asked how the | ower dropout rate
was measur ed.

MR. RICHVOND answered that the dropout rate submtted was based
on an annual percentage and Senator French may be referring to
the cumulative dropout rate. He noted that the cumnulative
dropout rate has declined from40 percent to 32 percent.

8:20:18 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER comrented on the Crinme Summt recently presented
by Senator French and education's indirect effect on crine. He
said the recent Pre-Kindergarten Task Force and the Moore case

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2012



settlement both enphasized the inmportance of early childhood
educati on.

8:21:16 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that reports presented were hel pful
and showed ©positive progress. He noted the inportance of
docunentation to support how educational data was derived, e.gqg.
how and when the dropout rate was calculated for an annual or
graduation cl ass percent age.

8:.23:21 AM

DAVI D HERBERT, Pr esi dent, Al aska Counci | of School

Adm nistrators (ACSA), said a recent ACSA report on the BSA
showed a $320 increase was required for school districts to neet
projected cost increases and noted that the BSA has not
increased during the past two fiscal years. He said ACSA has
determ ned that the primary focus was on increasing the FY13 BSA
by $320 to avoid staff reductions, program cuts and detrimenta

effects on students.

8:26:45 AM

He noted the inprovenent made in the state's graduation rate and
work readiness in its graduates. He said the nulti-year forward
funding would greatly assist districts for planning upcom ng
budgets. He said costs continue to increase, federal funding
continues to decrease, student enrollnent has declined in some
districts and the elimnation of $20 million appropriated in
FYy12 for higher energy costs.

8:30: 35 AM

MR. HEBERT said he was the superintendent for the St. Mary's
school district; 99 percent Native Al askan popul ati on, nade AYP
nearly every year, 90 percent graduation rate and a recent
graduate was attending Stanford University on a schol arshi p.

8:31: 55 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER conmented that the Senate has nade education
funding a top priority and the intent is to have funding
approved in time to assist districts with their FY13 budget
pl anning. He noted that a $320 BSA increase was doubtful, but
annual increases ranging from $125 to $135 over three years was
a start.

8. 32: 55 AM

SENATOR STEVENS stated that he appreciated the ACSA s
docunmentation to support a $320 increase in BSA funding, but
noted that it was up to the commttee to submt a realistic

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2012



increase that had a chance to pass. He commended conmittee
menbers who canme forward with a plan to address education
funding shortfalls and noted that the focus should be on how SB
171 woul d hel p rather than not being enough.

8:34:47 AM

SI ERRA  LLOYD, fourth-grade student, Har borvi ew El enentary
School, Juneau, said an increase in the BSA would benefit her
school by providing nore conputers and teachers.

8:36: 52 AM

ERIN HEYWOOD, representing herself, Juneau, said her sons were
special need students wth henophilia. She said proposed
cut backs woul d elim nate school nurses who tend to her children.

8:41:53 AM

LI LLIAN WORL, representing herself, Juneau, said the district
continues to augnment school budgets with donations and fund-
raising activities. She said proposed budget cuts would
elimnate 66 staff nenbers, reduce school nurses by 60 percent
and restrict needed technol ogy upgrades.

8:46: 32 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER commented that he has always been inpressed with
parental involvenment in Juneau and understands the high travel
expenses faced by the district due to attending activities in
Sout hcentral .

8:47:10 AM

MAUREEN HALL, School Nurse, Juneau School District, said schools
face additional <challenges due to technology's inpact on
behavi or and rising obesity rates. She said underfundi ng schoo
budgets does not respond to the increased challenge it takes to
educate children in today's culture.

8:53:34 AM

COCHAIR THOVAS comrented that "digital di straction" for
children would only get worse as the necessity for schools to
i ntervene increases.

M5. HALL said a balanced curriculum approach wth physical
activity is inmportant for children.

8:55:01 AM
DR. JOY NEYHART, Pediatrician, Juneau, said school nurses play
an inportant supportive role when caring for children,

especially with special needs patients. She said saving noney by

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2012



repl aci ng school nurses with health aides would put students at
risk.

8:57: 09 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked what the difference was between a school
nurse and a health ai de.

DR. NEYHART answered that she did not know.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if a health aide would be a certified
nur se.

DR. NEYHART answered no. She said a health aide could be an
i ndi vidual with no postsecondary educati on.

8:57.:46 AM

STEWART  MCDONALD, Superi nt endent , Kodi ak, said education
spending has not kept up with costs and the result has been
continued staff and program cuts. He said dropout rates would
increase if core curriculum was not balanced with devel opnenta
activities. He said the district was trying to find new ways to
educate children with fewer resources.

9:02: 45 AM

PETER HOEPFNER, Cordova School Board Menber, Cordova, said an
increase in the BSA would help with continually rising expenses.
He noted that the district has aggressively worked on conserving
energy costs by cutting nearly $500,000 over the past five
years. He said forward-funding would help the district plan for
its future. He said continued flat-funding would |ead to teacher
| ayoffs and create student perfornmance concerns.

9:04: 29 AM

SENATOR STEVENS commented that the Cordova School District has
the 2012 Teacher of the Year and the 2012 Superintendent of the
Year, a tribute to their success.

9:05: 11 AM
ANNE KI LKENNY, representing herself, Matanuska-Susitna, said the
bill should be anended to two years with a BSA increase in FY13

by $340 and FY14 by $170. She said federal funding has inpacted
the district's budget, down from 10 to 12 percent to less than
one percent.

9: 09: 59 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER announced he would hold SB 171 in commttee for
future consideration

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2012



9:10: 38 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the Senate Education Conmttee at 9:10
a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2012



